#### **BOROUGH COUNCIL OF KING'S LYNN & WEST NORFOLK**

#### **CORPORATE PERFORMANCE PANEL**

Minutes from the Meeting of the Corporate Performance Panel held on Wednesday, 8th June, 2016 at 6.00 pm in the Committee Suite, King's Court, Chapel Street, King's Lynn

#### PRESENT:

Councillors B Anota, P Beal, R Bird, J Collop, I Gourlay, G Hipperson, H Humphrey, A Morrison, D Pope, D Tyler and G Wareham

#### Portfolio Holder:

Councillor N Daubney, Portfolio Holder - Performance

#### Officers:

Ray Harding, Chief Executive Becky Box, Personnel Services Manager

# CP1 <u>APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR</u> 2016/2017

**RESOLVED:** That Councillor G Wareham be appointed as Chairman of the Corporate Performance Panel for the Municipal Year 2016/2017.

# CP2 APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2016/2017

**RESOLVED:** That Councillor P Beal be appointed Vice Chairman of the Corporate Performance Panel for the Municipal Year 2016/2017.

#### CP3 APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Lord Howard and Debbie Gates, Executive Director.

# CP4 MINUTES OF THE RESOURCES AND PERFORMANCE PANEL HELD ON 22 MARCH 2016

The minutes from the Resources and Performance held on 22 March 2016 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

#### CP5 **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST**

None.

#### CP6 URGENT BUSINESS UNDER STANDING ORDER 7

None.

#### CP7 MEMBERS PRESENT PURSUANT TO STANDING ORDER 34

Councillor P Hodson – CPP12. Councillor I Devereux – Deputy Cabinet Member.

## CP8 CHAIRMAN'S CORRESPONDENCE (IF ANY)

None.

# CP9 MATTERS REFERRED TO THE PANEL FROM OTHER COUNCIL BODIES AND RESPONSES MADE TO PREVIOUS COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS/REQUESTS

None.

## CP10 <u>2015/2016 FULL YEAR PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORT</u> AND FULL YEAR ACTION REPORT

The Personnel Services Manager drew the Panel's attention to page 21, CE3 Number of unintentional priority homeless acceptances and explained that the column – 2016/16 Target should read 110.

The Chairman thanked the Personnel Manager for the report and invited questions and comments from the Panel.

The Personnel Services Manager responded to questions from the Panel, a summary of which is set out below.

In response to questions regarding the percentage of indicators which had not met target increasing to 32%, the Personnel Services Manager explained that the targets were set at the beginning of each year which were realistic and achievable. The targets were agreed with Management Team and the Portfolio Holder. Targets were monitored and the indicators could be changed and reviewed on an annual basis.

Following comments regarding paragraph 3.4, the Personnel Services Manager explained that some targets were for monitoring purposes only and therefore no target had been set.

In response to questions regarding Indicator CE3 – Number of unintentional priority homeless acceptances, the Chief Executive explained there had been increased demand on the Borough Council's services this year, particularly in relation to an increase in the number of domestic violence cases. The Borough Council was managing the

process in order to minimise and avoid where possible the use of bed and breakfast accommodation as it proved expensive and had an impact on families.

Following questions on the impact of capital receipts during the forthcoming year, the Chief Executive explained that the Council's Capital Programme was not dependant on Capital Receipts to fund the allocated projects, but added that the Property Services Manager was confident that the expected sales not completed during 2015/2016 would be captured in 2016/2017.

In response to a question regarding indicator EP4 Premises rated 3 or above in accordance with the food hygiene rating system and period before a re-inspection was undertaken, Councillor Anota explained he believed a premises was re-assessed every 3 years. The Personnel Manager undertook to check the information and email a response direct to the Panel.

Following a comment that comparable figures were not available from other Councils in order that the Borough Council could benchmark against, Councillor Daubney stated that the Borough Council did benchmark against other similar Councils but there were variances regarding population etc. He added that other Council's performance targets were public documents and information could be obtained from that Council's website.

In response to the reasons why there was an increase in those people presenting themselves as homeless to the Borough Council, the Chief Executive advised that it was often more than one reason and it was difficult therefore to determine the underlying cause. A report would be presented to a future meeting of the Panel.

**RESOLVED:** The Panel reviewed and note the Corporate Performance Monitoring Report – Full Year 2015/2016 and agreed the actions outlined the Action Report.

# CP11 Q4 2015/2016 CORPORATE BUSINESS PLAN MONITORING REPORT

The Personnel Manager presented the report circulated with the Agenda and explained that Members should note that key actions which were completed prior to Q3 had been removed from the report and were contained in a separate archive report — Completed Key Actions report 2011-2015. Any outcomes indicated as now completed on the Q4 report would be removed from the monitoring report and added to the new Completed Key Actions report 2016-2020.

The Panel was informed that, in total, the Corporate Business Plan had 52 ongoing key actions which the Council was working on and that the

chart at section 2.3 highlighted the number of key actions which underpin each corporate priority.

The Chairman thanked the Personnel Manager for the report and invited questions and comments from the Panel.

In response to questions regarding the grounds maintenance and maintaining levels of service delivery that met the needs of the community, the Chief Executive explained that a revised grass cutting regime was now in progress which would be monitored and reviewed on a regular basis. A report would be presented to the Panel at the October meeting.

Following comments and questions on Devolution, the Chief Executive reminded the Panel that Pre-Council briefings had been held in order to keep Members up to date. A Cabinet report was currently being drafted and would be presented to Cabinet on 29 June 2016. The Chief Executive explained that all other Councils in Norfolk and Suffolk would be presenting a report to their respective Councils to move the proposal to the next stage if that was the wish of those Councils. The Chief Executive provided background information on the Norfolk and Suffolk proposal and work being undertaken with Cambridge and Peterborough. A draft Scheme of Governance was currently being circulated for agreement. It was highlighted that timescales were right and implementation was April 2017.

In response to questions regarding pop up shops, the Chief Executive explained that negotiations were in place with the Vancouver Quarter Manager and feedback received was that the use of pop up shops had been successful.

Following comments on the King's Lynn Enterprise Centre, the Portfolio Holder for Performance reported that a number of businesses were already occupying space in KLIC and the official opening would take place on Tuesday 14 June 2016 at 10.00 am and all Councillors were invited to attend.

In response to questions regarding supporting a programme of Learning Catalysts to help drive up the skills levels of local people, the Personnel Services Manager explained that the Borough Council worked closely with other providers.

**RESOLVED:** The Panel reviewed and noted the Q4 2015/2016 Corporate Business Plan Monitoring report.

# CP12 NOMINATION TO OUTSIDE BODIES AND PARTNERSHIPS - HUNSTANTON SAILING CLUB DEVELOPMENT SUB COMMITTEE

**RESOLVED:** That Councillor P Hodson be appointed the Borough Council's representative on the Hunstanton Sailing Club Committee

and progress reports would be received by the Panel on a six monthly basis.

## CP13 WORK PROGRAMME 2016/2017

The Chief Executive reminded the Panel that the Work Programme was in draft and that any Member could put forward suggestions for consideration to be discussed at future Panel meetings. However, he reminded the Panel that an Opposition Member could automatically request one item to be considered at each Panel meeting.

**RESOLVED:** The Panel noted the Work Programme for 2016/2017.

### CP14 **DATE OF NEXT MEETING**

The Chief Executive advised that a special Corporate Performance Panel meeting may be required depending on the outcome of the Devolution discussions to take place on 15 June 2016.

The next scheduled meeting of the Panel would be held on Monday 18 July 2016.

#### The meeting closed at 7.12 pm